
 
County Offices 

Newland 
Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 
 

25 November 2022 
 

Planning and Regulation Committee 
 

A meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee will be held on Monday, 5 December 
2022 at 10.30 am in the Council Chamber, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL for the 
transaction of business set out on the attached Agenda.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Debbie Barnes OBE 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Planning and Regulation Committee  
(15 Members of the Council) 
 
Councillors I G Fleetwood (Chairman), Mrs C L E Vernon (Vice-Chairman), P Ashleigh-Morris, 
T R Ashton, Mrs A M Austin, S A J Blackburn, I D Carrington, A M Hall, Mrs M J Overton MBE, 
N H Pepper, R P H Reid, N Sear, P A Skinner, T J N Smith and 1 Vacancy 
 
 

Public Document Pack





PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE AGENDA 
MONDAY, 5 DECEMBER 2022 

 
 
Item 
 

Title 
 

Pages 
  

1.  Apologies/replacement members  
 

 
 
2.  Declarations of Members' Interests  

 
 

 
3.  Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation 

Committee held on 7 November 2022  
 

5 - 8 

 
4.  Minutes of the site visit held on 17 November 2022  

 
9 - 10 

 
5.  TRAFFIC ITEMS  

 
 

 
5.1   West Willoughby A153, Willoughby Road - proposed 40mph 

speed limit extension  
 

11 - 16 

 
5.2   Spalding, A151 Winsover Road - Proposed Puffin Crossing 

Facility  
 

17 - 24 

 
5.3   Lincoln, Proposed Permit Parking Scheme Zone 5C - Roads 

between Sincil Bank Drain, High Street, Pennell Street and 
Portland Street  
 

25 - 52 

 
5.4   Lincoln, Proposed Permit Parking Scheme Zone 5D - Roads 

between Sincil Bank Drain, Canwick Road, Sincil Bank 
Football Ground and the East West Link Road  
 

53 - 82 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Democratic Services Officer Contact Details  
 
Name: Rachel Wilson 

 
Direct Dial 07796 994874 

 
E Mail Address democraticservices@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 
Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting 
 

• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
Contact details set out above. 
 
Please note: This meeting will be broadcast live on the internet and access can be 
sought by accessing Agenda for Planning and Regulation Committee on Monday, 5th 
December, 2022, 10.30 am (moderngov.co.uk) 
 
For more information about the Planning process and to view Planning decisions 
please click on the following link:  Planning Portal 
 
All papers for council meetings are available on: 
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records 
 
 

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=6239&Ver=4
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=6239&Ver=4
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/planning/find-planning-application
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records


  1 

 
 PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
 7 NOVEMBER 2022 

 

 

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR I G FLEETWOOD (CHAIRMAN) 
 
Councillors Mrs C L E Vernon (Vice-Chairman), P Ashleigh-Morris, T R Ashton, 
Mrs A M Austin, S A J Blackburn, I D Carrington, A M Hall, Mrs M J Overton MBE, N H Pepper, 
R P H Reid, N Sear, P A Skinner and T J N Smith 
 
Officers in attendance:- 
Jeanne Gibson (Programme Leader: Minor Works and Traffic), Martha Rees (Solicitor), Marc 
Willis (Applications Manager), Neil McBride (Head of Planning) and Thomas Crofts 
(Democratic Services Officer) 
  
  
38     APOLOGIES/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS 

 
There were no apologies received from Councillors. 
  
39     DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
There were no declarations of interest made at this point in proceedings. 
  
40     MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND REGULATION 

COMMITTEE HELD ON 3 OCTOBER 2022 
 

RESOLVED 
  
That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 October 2022 be signed by the Chairman as a 
correct record. 
  
41     TRAFFIC ITEMS 

 
 

41a Lincoln, St Catherine's Grove - Proposed No Waiting at Any Time restriction  
The Committee considered a report which detailed an objection to proposed waiting 
restrictions at the junction of St Catherine’s Grove and St Catherine’s Court, Lincoln. 
  
The Programme Leader: Minor Works and Traffic introduced the report and shared a 
presentation which detailed the area under consideration. 
  
Members commented that the restrictions improved access to the area.  
  
On a motion proposed by Councillor T Ashton and seconded by Councillor P Skinner, it was: 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



2 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
7 NOVEMBER 2022 
 

 

  
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
  
That the objection be overruled so that the order as advertised may be introduced. 
 
41b Branston: Station Rd, Fairleas and Archer Road - Proposed waiting restrictions  
For openness and transparency, Councillor I Carrington declared that he had attended 
Branston Parish Council meetings regarding this item and maintained an open mind. 
  
The Committee considered a report which detailed an objection to a proposed traffic 
regulation order to introduce waiting restrictions at Station Rd, Fairleas and Archer Rd, 
Branston. 
  
The Programme Leader: Minor Works and Traffic introduced the report and shared a 
presentation which detailed the area under consideration. 
  
Members commented that the restriction improved safety and noted that the Council could 
not compel the school to ensure provision for a drop-off point. 
  
On a motion proposed by Councillor P Skinner and seconded by Councillor I Carrington, it 
was: 
  
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
  
That the objection be overruled so that the order as advertised may be introduced. 
 
41c East Heckington A17 - Proposed 40mph Speed Limit  
The Committee considered a report which detailed a request for the existing 50mph speed 
limit on the A17, East Heckington, to be reduced to 40mph. 
  
The Programme Leader: Minor Works and Traffic introduced the report and shared a 
presentation which detailed the area under consideration. 
  
Members commented that reducing the speed limit would impact heavy traffic and that 
traffic was already largely self-regulating as the average speed on the stretch road in 
question was already close to 40mph. However, it was noted that there were various turn-
offs along the road for small businesses. Members felt that, as this was a borderline case, 
further information was required to make a decision, especially concerning the nature and 
number of collisions under the current speed limit.  
  
On a motion proposed by Councillor T Ashton and seconded by Councillor T Smith, it was: 
  
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
  
That the item be deferred, and further information provided. 
 

Page 6



3 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

7 NOVEMBER 2022 
 

 

41d Lincoln, Proposed Permit Parking Scheme Zone 5C - Roads between Sincil Bank 
Drain, High Street, Pennell Street and Portland Street  

For openness and transparency, the Chairman declared that all Members of the Committee 
had received correspondence from a resident and confirmed that Members had not 
responded to any messages. 
  
For openness and transparency, the Chairman declared that some residents within the 
proposed area were known to him. 
  
The Committee considered a report which detailed objections received to a proposed Permit 
Parking Scheme Zone 5C – Roads between Sincil Bank Drain, High Street, Pennell Street and 
Portland Street. 
  
The Programme Leader: Minor Works and Traffic introduced the report and shared a 
presentation which detailed the area under consideration. 
  
Members commented that it was well know that the area was used by commuters for free 
parking, which impacted on available spaces for residents, and it was noted that the majority 
of residents supported the scheme. It was also clarified that permits would cost £26 per 
annum for one car and &52 per annum for two cars. Overall, Members felt that it was 
difficult to envisage the full site and as a notable minority of residents had raised objections, 
a site visit would be useful in making a decision. 
  
On a motion proposed by Councillor T Smith and seconded by Councillor P Ashleigh-Morris it 
was: 
  
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
  

1. That the item be deferred, and further information provided. 
2. That prior to any further consideration Members be offered the opportunity for a site 

visit. 
  
42     COUNTY MATTER APPLICATIONS 

 
 

42a For the enlargement of an existing irrigation pond and the removal from site of 
extracted minerals (sand and gravel) for treatment at Bede Farm, Cross Keys Lane, 
Coningsby (Applicant:  W R Hanson and Son) - S/035/02549/21  

For openness and transparency, the Councillors I Fleetwood and T Ashton declared that they 
were appointees to the Environment Agency Regional Flood Committee. 
  
For openness and transparency, Councillor T Ashton declared that he was the Local Member 
for Coningsby. 
  

Page 7



4 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
7 NOVEMBER 2022 
 

 

The Committee considered a report which detailed permission was sought for the 
enlargement of an existing irrigation pond and the removal from site of extracted minerals 
for treatment at Bede Farm, Cross Keys Lane, Coningsby. 
  
The Applications Manager introduced the report and shared a presentation which detailed 
the and location of the proposed development. 
  
The Applicant, Mr Hanson, spoke in support of the application. 
  
Members asked the Applicant numerous questions. In response, the following comments 
were made: 
  

   The Applicant had attempted to complete the necessary paperwork to secure a 
variation to his water abstraction licence for on multiple occasions, but documents 
had purportedly been lost by the Environment Agency.  

   The application would not have an effect on neighbouring irrigation systems. 
   It was not clear how long it would take the applicant to secure a licence from the 

Environment Agency. 
  
Members commented that there was a need for more reservoirs and irrigation systems 
across the county, and that the application was sound in terms of County matters. Members 
noted that the reason for refusal was largely due to issues surrounding the absence of an 
extended abstraction license which would allow water to fill the larger reservoir, which the 
Applicant was actively pursuing, and felt assured that the license could now be secured in a 
timely manner. Members recognised that if more time was given to the applicant to secure a 
license, then the application would no longer be in breach of the policy and could be dealt 
with by officers. 
  
The Applications Manager advised that should Members be minded to approve the 
application then they could defer the application and give the Applicant 3 months in which 
to secure the revised licence. If the revised licence was secured within this timeframe then 
the application could be determined by Officers under delegated powers as there would be 
no outstanding issues. If the licence was not secured in that timeframe then the application 
could be brought back to the Committee for a decision. 
  
On a motion proposed by Councillor N Pepper and seconded by Councillor T Ashton it was: 
  
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
  

1. That the item be deferred for 3 months. 
2. That officers be given authority to deal. If the revised licence is secured within this 

timeframe. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 11.35 am 

Page 8



  1 

 
 PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

SITE VISIT 
 17 NOVEMBER 2022 

 
PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR I G FLEETWOOD (CHAIRMAN) 
 
Councillors Mrs C L E Vernon (Vice-Chairman), T J N Smith, Mrs J Killey, T R Ashton and P 
Ashley-Morris 
 
Officers in attendance:- 
Thomas Crofts (Democratic Services Officer), Jeanne Gibson (Programme Leader - Minor 
Works & Traffic) and Dan O'Neill (Highways Asset Management) 
  
1     APOLOGIES/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S A J Blackburn, I D Carrington, N H 
Pepper, R P H Reid and N Sear 
  
2     LINCOLN, PROPOSED PERMIT PARKING SCHEME ZONE 5C – ROADS BETWEEN 

SINCIL BANK DRAIN, HIGH STREET, PENNELL STREET AND PORTLAND STREET 
 

Officers stated that the application was due to be considered by the Planning and Regulation 
Committee at a future meeting. The Programme Leader - Minor Works & Traffic’s guidance 
gave Members an overview of the site, including the proposed Zone 5D which has also been 
advertised and is to be reported to a future Committee meeting.  The following matters were 
noted: 
 

• Most properties did not have driveways or allocated parking. 
• Most households that owned vehicles owned one to two cars. 
• The area was used by commuters for free parking. 
• There was more parking by residents in evenings. 

  
Members were shown images of streets that would be affected by the scheme, which 
illustrated current parking conditions. The following matters were discussed: 
 

• The proposed scheme limited vehicle parking to two per household, which presented 
an issue to households that had more than two vehicles, such as multiple occupancy 
student households. 

• The cost of permits to residents. 
• Parking helped slow traffic. 
• Commuter parking was evident, but residents’ access to parking was self-regulating in 

the evening. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4.



2 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
17 NOVEMBER 2022 
 
 

• Under the proposed scheme, a scratch card system allowed visitors and carers to park 
in the restricted zones. 

• City of Lincoln Council would manage the scheme and would be responsible for permit 
types and limits. 

• The proposed scheme did not provide marked bays for parking, but restricted zones 
were to be sign posted. 

 
Members were then given the opportunity to navigate the area. 
 
The meeting closed at 10:30AM. 

Page 10



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson, Executive Director - Place 
 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 05 December 2022 

Subject: 
West Willoughby A153, Willoughby Road – proposed 40mph 
speed limit extension. 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report considers a reduction of the 60mph speed limit on the A153, Willoughby 
Road to 40mph. Investigations have indicated that the above location may be 
considered a ‘Borderline Case’, as defined in the Council’s speed limit policy. 

 
 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Committee approves the reduction in speed limit proposed so that the 
necessary consultation process to bring it into effect may be pursued. 

 
 
Background 
 
Following a request from Ancaster Parish Council for a review of the existing 60mph speed 
limit at this location, investigations have been carried out to determine if a reduction in 
the level of limit can be justified against the speed limit policy. 
The A153 forms part of the strategic road network carrying a weekday average traffic flow 
of 6000 vehicles. There is insufficient development along this length to justify the 
introduction of a speed limit on that basis, so it has been assessed under the criteria for a 
rural limit where the number of reported injury accidents, in this case three, and traffic 
flow, are taken into consideration to provide an accident rate. The accident rate has been 
calculated at 42 and is therefore sufficient to justify a new limit. The level of limit to be 
imposed is determined by the mean speed of traffic and its correlation to the level of limit 
shown in Table 4 of the policy: 
 

 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5.1



In accordance with the County Council's Speed Limit Policy a Borderline Case may be 
identified and is defined at 6.1 as follows: 
 
6.1 At locations where the mean speed data falls within +/- 3mph of the mean speed in 
Table 4 then this is classed as a Borderline Case. 
 
A speed survey carried out at the location shown at Appendix B has determined a mean 
speed of traffic of 45mph, which lies within 3mph of the level required to justify a 40mph 
speed limit. This proposal may therefore be considered a Borderline Case and the 
Committee may approve the initiation of the speed limit order process to reduce the 
current 60mph speed limit to 40mph as shown at Appendix B. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The Planning and Regulation Committee may approve a departure from the criteria set 
out in the speed limit policy where a borderline case has been identified, and therefore 
may agree to a reduction to a 40mph limit at this location. It is anticipated that road safety 
along this section of the A153 will be improved should this new speed limit be introduced. 
 
Consultation 
 
No formal consultation is required at this stage. The local Member supports the proposal on the 
basis that school children cross the A153 here to access bus stops, and large, slow moving vehicles 
associated with a nearby quarry will be negotiating the junction of Rookery Lane with the A153. 
 
 
 

 
 

Risks and Impact Analysis 

None carried out 
 

Appendices 
 
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 
Appendix A Site location 
Appendix B Detail of proposed restrictions 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied 
upon in the writing of this report. 
 
Document title Where the document can be viewed 
Speed limit policy; Speed survey results; 
correspondence. 

Available on request 

 
This report was written by Lauren Sheehan, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
TRO@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 

Page 12



     APPENDIX A : Site location            West Willoughby A153 Willoughby Rd – proposed 40mph speed limit extension 

          

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B: West Willoughby A153, Willoughby Road – proposed 40mph speed limit 

 

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson, Executive Director - Place 
 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 05 December 2022 

Subject: 
Spalding, A151 Winsover Road - Proposed Puffin Crossing 
Facility  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report considers the outcome of a pedestrian crossing survey at the site of the 
existing Zebra crossing between the junctions with Hawthorn Bank and Carrington 
Road, as show at Appendix B. 

 
 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Committee considers the criteria set out in the Pedestrian Crossing Policy and 
supports the submission of a funding bid for a feasibility study, design and installation 
of a Puffin crossing at this location. 

 
 
Background 
 
Following a request from the local Member for the existing Zebra crossing on the A151 Winsover 
Road to be upgraded to a Puffin facility, an initial site survey confirmed that the Zebra crossing is 
well used given the location of the adjacent convenience store. It also provides connectivity 
between Hawthorn Bank and Carrington Road, linking schools and residential areas to the north 
and south of Winsover Road. 
 
A pedestrian crossing survey was carried out in May 2022. Data on the numbers of pedestrians 
crossing the road, traffic flows and several other factors are applied to the PV²ASCW calculation 
and this produced a score of 1.13. Table 1 from the Pedestrian Crossing Policy document as shown 
below, indicates that this falls short of the threshold of 1.2 required for a Puffin crossing:  
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5.2



 
 
However, at 3.1 in that document it is stated that if the result at a location falls within 10% of the 
score required for a specific facility then it may be subject to further consideration and approval 
may be sought from this Committee for the facility to be installed.  
 
A Stage 1 Road Safety Audit was completed in November and no road safety concerns relating to 
the provision of a Puffin crossing at this location were identified. A check of the Personal Injury 
Collisions (PICs) on the County’s collision database indicates that, in the last three years, there 
have been 1 serious and 3 slight PICs within the vicinity of the proposed crossing. The cost to 
install a Puffin crossing is estimated at £90,000, with an initial £10,000 required for a feasibility 
study and scheme design.  
 
Conclusion 
 
The policy enables some flexibility in terms of scheme selection and in the case of this site, 
approval will be required from this committee in order to progress a Puffin crossing at this location 
given that the survey score lies within 10% of the threshold required. 

 
Consultation 
 
Not required at this stage. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

None carried out 
 

Appendices 
 
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 
Appendix A General location plan 
Appendix B Detailed location plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied 
upon in the writing of this report. 
 
Document title Where the document can be viewed 
LCC Pedestrian Crossing 
Policy; survey results; 
correspondence; Road 
Safety Audit 

LCC website 

 
This report was written by Jeanne Gibson, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
jeanne.gibson@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



   APPENDIX A : Site location                                                     Spalding, Winsover Road - Proposed Puffin crossing facility 
 

                

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



NORTH

A4

 N
ov

 1
5,

20
22

 - 
4:

27
pm

 G
:\c

om
m

on
\T

ra
ffi

c 
R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
O

rd
er

s\
Sc

he
m

es
 M

as
te

r F
ol

de
r D

O
 N

O
T 

C
H

AN
G

E\
30

00
 - 

31
00

\3
08

3 
Sp

al
di

ng
 W

in
so

ve
r R

oa
d 

C
ro

ss
in

g 
U

pg
ra

de
 R

eq
ue

st
\C

AD
\A

pp
en

di
x 

B.
dw

g

Project

Status Project No.

Scale

Drawn

Ch'kd

Auth Traced

Date

Date

Drawing No. Rev.

Drawing Title

Project

Rev. Description Drawn Ch'kd Auth Date

Lincolnshire
COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

Lincolnshire
COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

Lancaster House, 36 Orchard Street, Lincoln, LN1 1YZ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020
Ordnance Survey 100025370.

NTS @A40

Proposed Location of Puffin
Crossing Facility

Spalding, Winsover Road - Proposed Puffin Crossing Facility

3083

Appendix B - Proposed Crossing Location

H/JE/3083/002

JE 11/22

P
age 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
170a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
170b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
229

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
207a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
203

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
197

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Michaels

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
HAWTHORN BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
CARRINGTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
198

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
208

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
219

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
241

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
245

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
253

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
207

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
WINSOVER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
MAY BLOSSOM WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
227

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
Gas Gov



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson, Executive Director - Place 
 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 05 December 2022 

Subject: 
Lincoln, Proposed Permit Parking Scheme Zone 5C – Roads 
between Sincil Bank Drain, High Street, Pennell Street and 
Portland Street 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This is a supplementary report to the earlier one on this matter brought to this 
Committee on 7th November 2022 (see Appendix A). It was resolved at that meeting to 
visit the area to gain a better understanding of the potential impact of the proposed 
scheme to introduce permit parking within the streets shown at Appendix B.  

 
 

Recommendation(s): 

That the objections be overruled and that the scheme as advertised be introduced. 
 

 
Background 
 
A visit to the area by Committee Members took place on 17th November. A number of 
issues and concerns were discussed including the additional cost to residents which would 
be imposed by the scheme, access for visitors and carers should it be introduced, and 
whether or not there was a genuine need for a scheme of this nature. 
 
Officers acknowledged the sensitivity around the cost of living at this time. However, a 
permit scheme of this type must be self-financing in order to be viable. 
 
Two permits would be available to residents, the first costing £26.00 annually and the 
second £52.00. Details of the options for visitors to the area were clarified and include the 
provision of limited waiting bays throughout the area, and the availability of visitor 
permits and scratch cards for residents. The scheme was justified against the Council’s 
guidance for permit parking schemes in terms of space available to residents for on street 
parking, prior to consultation. Surveys identified that space was limited during the day and 
it could be determined from the results that this was because much of it was occupied by 
vehicles which were not present outside working hours. 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5.3



Conclusion 
 
The concerns by some Members regarding the impact of a permit parking scheme over 
such a large area and its potential effect on all the residents within it have been noted. 
The scheme would impose a charge for parking on street and require additional means to 
allow parking by visitors. 
The scheme has been justified against criteria however and received a majority support 
from those residents who responded to the questionnaire survey. Its introduction would 
contribute to improvements in the area in terms of reducing traffic flow which in turn 
reduces air pollution and improves safety for pedestrians and cyclists.  
 
Consultation 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 

 
 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

See attached Equality Impact Assessment. 
 

Appendices 
 
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 
Appendix A Report: ‘Lincoln, Proposed Permit Parking Scheme Zone 5C – Roads 

between Sincil Bank Drain, High Street, Pennell Street and Portland 
Street’, submitted to this Committee on 7th November 2022. 

Appendix B Detail of proposed restrictions 
Appendix C List of objections and comments 
Appendix D Equality Impact Assessment 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied 
upon in the writing of this report. 
 
Document title Where the document can be viewed 
Assessment and survey information; 
Consultation documents and 
correspondence. 

Available on request 

 
This report was written by Dan O’Neill, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
TRO@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

Page 26



    APPENDIX A   
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson, Executive Director of Place 
 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Subject: 
Lincoln, Proposed Permit Parking Scheme Zone 5C – 
Roads between Sincil Bank Drain, High Street, Pennell 
Street and Portland Street 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  
This report considers objections received to the above proposal which has 
been publicly advertised from Thursday 14th July to Friday 9th September 
2022. 
 

 

Recommendation(s): 
That the objections be overruled and that the scheme as advertised be 
introduced. 
 

 
Background 
 
In 2017, the City of Lincoln Council developed a new approach to working in 
neighbourhoods. The profile and needs of the Sincil Bank area were such that a 
decision was taken to focus resources on improvements here, working closely with 
the local community to identify a range of actions that would result in 
transformational change. One of the key aims is to reduce the high level of 
commuter parking in the area and the traffic movements this generates. This 
results in congested streets, restricted footpaths, busy rat runs and poor air quality, 
and has a negative impact on the quality of life for residents. 
A scheme of environmental highway improvements is planned towards the end of 
next year to support this vision, and the proposed permit parking scheme is a step 
towards the regeneration the area, supporting the community’s aspiration to give 
streets back to local people and to promote shared spaces less dominated by 
traffic. 
A formal request was received in 2018 from the City of Lincoln Council for an 
expansion of the permit parking scheme south of the city centre, to include the 
Sincil Bank area. Subsequently investigations took place to confirm if these streets 
would be eligible for such a scheme in line with County Council guidance.  Surveys 
confirmed that available kerbside space for on street parking here during the day 
was limited for residents owing to use of the area by non-residents. In July 2019 a 
questionnaire was sent to all properties within the proposed Zone 5C asking if 

Page 27



residents would be in support of the introduction of a permit parking scheme.  In 
accordance with the Council’s guidance for District Council administered schemes, 
a majority of respondents must be in support for it to be viable. The results 
indicated that 64% were in favour, enabling the scheme to be progressed. 
 
The proposed scheme will be operational from Monday to Saturday, 8am to 6pm. 
Dual use bays providing a two hour stay for non-permit holders and an unlimited 
period for permit holders will be introduced and a similar treatment is proposed for 
the existing limited waiting bays. Double yellow lines will replace lengths of single 
yellow line on Sibthorpe Street (southern side) and Scorer Street (passing areas) 
to assist with traffic flow.  
The City of Lincoln Council, as the permit issuing authority, confirmed which 
properties within the Zone would be eligible for permits. 
 
Statutory consultation for the traffic regulation order took place from 15th July to 
13th August 2021. No adverse comments were received. The scheme was then 
publicly advertised until Friday 9th September 2022, with each property in the Zone 
being sent a copy of the proposals. 
 
Objections 
 
During the advertisement period 17 objections to the scheme were received.  
Various grounds for objection were referenced and these are itemised in detail, 
along with officer’s comments, at Appendix C. 
In summary, there is concern about the additional cost of permits for residents 
should the scheme be implemented, given the ongoing increase in the cost of 
living. It is suggested that the need for this scheme should be re-assessed and that 
if more incentives were provided to use car parks in the city centre then the issue 
of non-residents using Sincil Bank would not exist. It is stated that the scheme will 
fail as it does not address competition for parking after 6pm, when the bays for 
permit holders would no longer apply. Many are concerned on the impact on 
visitors and carers accessing the area. Lack of information on how the scheme and 
its enforcement operates has also been raised, along with a suggestion that it is 
designed to generate income for both the City and County councils. 
 
Comments 
 
Any decision on this proposal will take into account the effect of increases in the 
costs borne by residents at this time and in the coming months. It is recognised 
that the scheme will have limitations in terms of provision for permit holders during 
the evenings. The scheme however is designed to exclude non-residents when 
there is demand from them during the day, but more space for residents and permit 
holders outside this time cannot be provided; neither does the scheme guarantee a 
parking space at any time. The concerns of nearby businesses and the school are 
noted, but the aim of the scheme is to give permit holders priority over commuters. 
There are alternative places to park both off and on street, although these may be 
less convenient. Temporary parking is permitted on yellow lines for the purposes of 
loading and unloading of equipment should this be required. Parking by visitors 
and carers is provided for through the scheme’s visitor permit system. The 
consultation exercise included details of the workings of the scheme and where 

Page 28



additional information can be found. The charges for permits are set at a level 
which covers the costs of administering the scheme and enforcing it. 

Conclusion 
 
The proposed permit scheme contributes to a number of initiatives which aim to 
improve the environment in the Sincil Bank area and therefore the lives of 
residents. The provision of bays for permit holders and short term parking only, 
restricts parking by non-residents and the additional traffic they generate. This in 
turn will facilitate future improvements in the area which will deter through traffic 
further and deliver improved routes for pedestrians and cyclists.

Consultation 
 
The following were consulted with regards to this proposal: Local Member, 
Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership, Lincolnshire Police, City of Lincoln Council, 
Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue, East Midlands Ambulance Trust, Road Haulage 
Association, Freight Transport Association and Lincoln BIG. 
 
 
 
 
 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 
See attached Equality Impact Assessment. 

 

Appendices 
 
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 
Appendix A Site location 
Appendix B Detail of proposed restrictions 
Appendix C List of objections and comments 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report. 
 
Document title Where the document can be viewed 
Assessment and survey information; 
Consultation documents and 
correspondence. 

Available on request 

 
This report was written by Dan O’Neill, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
TRO@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTH

A3

 
J
u
n
 
2
5
,
2
0
2
1
 
-
 
2
:
2
7
p
m

 
G

:
\
c
o
m

m
o
n
\
T

r
a
f
f
i
c
 
R

e
g
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
O

r
d
e
r
s
\
S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 
M

a
s
t
e
r
 
F

o
l
d
e
r
 
D

O
 
N

O
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E
\
5
0
1
-
9
0
0
\
8
3
0
 
S

i
n
c
i
l
 
B

a
n
k
 
R

P
S

 
S

c
h
e
m

e
\
C

A
D

\
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
P

r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
5
B

 
5
C

 
5
D

.
d
w

g

Project

Status Project No.

Scale

Drawn

Ch'kd

Auth Traced

Date

Date

Drawing No. Rev.

Drawing Title

Project

Rev.

Description

Drawn Ch'kd Auth Date

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

Lancaster House,36 Orchard Street,Lincoln,LN1 1XX

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019

Ordnance Survey 100025370.

Sincil Bank RPS

Zone 5C

NTS

DON Jun 2021

D/SCH830/5C/1 0

Page 31

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
416

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
415

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
79 to 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
411

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
414

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
410

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
409

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
SCORER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
407

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
408

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
1c

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
406a

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
Great Gowts Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
406b

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
405

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
78 to 124

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
365

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
TANNER'S LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
The Coach House

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
364

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
12 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
2 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
PORTLAND STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
Sincil Dike

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
Health Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
23b

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
363

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
369

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
361

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
70a

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
70c

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
HENRY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
DUNLOP STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
SAUSTHORPE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
Sincil Dike

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
SEWELL'S WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
PENNELL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
145 & 146

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
374

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
376

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
ANCHOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
375

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
137 to 140

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
376a

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
121a

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
KING STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
Central Methodist Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
Sorting Office

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
GPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
1 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
Tanners Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
197 to 231

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
ANCHOR CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
SCORER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
HOOD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
SINCIL BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
Sincil Dike

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
ABBOT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
NELTHORPE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
SIBTHORP STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
PRIOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
TROLLOPE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
CHELMSFORD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
WALNUT PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
27a

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
HERMIT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
23c

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
SINCIL BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
23a

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
368

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
CHAPLIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
MONSON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
Homer Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
MONSON COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
Sincil Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
Monson

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
9 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
Monson Retirement

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
Home

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
Thomas Cooper Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
Baptist Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
Chequers

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
Homer

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
ED & Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
416a

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
416b

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
416c

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
HIGH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
SA Citadel

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
Ashton's

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
St Mary's Guildhall

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
392

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
400

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
St Peter at Gowts

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
397

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
GAUNT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
398

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
393

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
395

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
383

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
394

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
396

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
384

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
The Lincoln

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
John

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
O'Gaunt

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
115b

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
115a

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
115d

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
115c

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
Lindsey Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
Merchant Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
381

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
390

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
391

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
381a

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
St Peter-at-Gowt's

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
382

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
100a

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
C of E Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
EDNA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
37a

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
102a

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
CROSS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
Existing no waiting at any time Existing no waiting Mon - Sat 8am - 6pm Existing 2 hours ltd waiting (NRW2Hrs) Mon - Sat 8am - 6pm Existing 1 hour ltd waiting (NRW1Hr) Mon - Sat  8am - 6pm Existing 1 hour ltd waiting (NRW2Hrs) Mon - Sat 8am - 6pm

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
Proposed no waiting at any time Proposed no waiting Mon - Sat 8am - 6pm Proposed Permit holders only Mon - Sat, 8am -  6pm Proposed 2 hours ltd waiting Mon - Sat 8am -  6pm, except permit Holders 5C Proposed 1 hour ltd waiting Mon - Sat 8am - 6pm except permit holders 5C

Dan.O'Neill
Stamp



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 

Objections and Comments. 
No 
of 
objs 

Grounds for objection Comment 

16 The cost of permits and the cost of alternatives to 
parking in the area will cause hardship at the current 
time. 

City of Lincoln Council is responsible for the 
administration of the scheme, which means that 
they set the maximum number of permits per 
household and the level of charges for permits, 
as well as what permit types are available.  
The Planning and Regulation Committee will 
determine how to proceed following the 
consideration of the objections received. 

1 Please can a second consultation take place in light of 
the current cost of living crisis, to check that residents 
fully understand, still support, and can afford this 
scheme.  

The Planning and Regulation Committee will 
determine how to proceed following the 
consideration of the objections received. 

1 Unfair to penalise residents for shoppers parking Residents parking schemes remove parking by 
third parties, whether they be working in the 
area, in the City Centre or shopping. This means 
residents’ have a greater opportunity to park 
within their Zone during its times of operation. 

1 Will be detrimental to tourism and the local economy if 
people visiting the City get parking fines within the RPS 
zone(s) 

Residents parking schemes remove parking by 
third parties, whether they be working in the 
area, in the City Centre or shopping. This means 
residents’ have a greater opportunity to park 
within their Zone during its’ times of operation. 

2 Local City Councillors have said the scheme will be  
introduced. That implies this consultation is going to 
have no effect whatsoever. 

The scheme is being proposed by Lincolnshire 
County Council and the Planning and Regulation 
Committee will consider objections as part of 
this process. 

1 More flexible options at car parks to incentivise their 
use. Eg. free parking for shoppers and commuters 1st 10 
in Council car parks free for a maximum 3 days per 
week. 

City of Lincoln Council operates several car 
parks. 

1 Didn’t get the questionnaire for Zone 5DE Best endeavours were made when hand 
delivering the questionnaires. 

1 Nobody from the Council lives here so they are unaware 
of what is required or needed. 

Conversely, there might be comments if a 
scheme were perceived as being proposed only 
because employees from the Council did live 
there. 

2 Residents parking will cut the number of spaces down 
and lead to resident’s being issued Penalty Charge 
Notices (PCNs) 

There will be an increase in the amount of 
double yellow lines on Sibthorpe Street and 
Scorer Street. 

1 Parked cars give no emissions so how does a RPS 
have a positive environmental effect. 

A restriction on parking by third parties would 
reduce the number of vehicles driving within the 
Zones looking for parking. 

1 GDPR a concern as information on permits could lead to 
people being identified. 

The objector provided examples whereby a 
permit holder can be traced if someone looks at 
the permit, remembers the vehicle it’s in and 
visits the Zone shown on the permit. 

1 No mention of hidden costs in terms of exemptions for 
builders and Penalty Charge Notices if permits are not 
displayed. 

Links to information were provided in the letters 
sent to residents during the advertisement of the 
proposals. 

1 £70 per PCN  This figure is reduced if paid within 14 days.  

1 “249 misinformed people ruined it for 6000” Questionnaires were delivered to all properties 
within the proposed zone for a response by the 
household, not individuals. The questionnaires 
sent out were similar to those sent regarding 
other RPS schemes in Lincoln. 

1 You can’t get rid of residents parking once it’s been put 
in. 

There will be a review of the scheme if it is 
introduced 

Page 33



2 “All residents parking will do there is limit even more the 
'free' spaces and risk a £70 parking invoice.” 

There will be an increase in the amount of 
double yellow lines within Zone 5C, particularly 
on Sibthorpe Street and Scorer Street. This has 
been done to maintain traffic flows. 

1 “There are more reasons for NOT having residents 
parking than for it (unless 1 mile of Skegness 
beach).   You don't enforce the zones you have or the 
regulations you have.” 

Enforcement of the Zone can be adjusted. 

1 “Can you put in writing that if it goes ahead, you will 
review after one year and do a new survey using the 
£127,000 surplus the council makes.” 

There will be a review of the scheme if it is 
introduced. 

3 The proposals are a money-making exercise. The County Council will not derive income from 
permit sales. 

2 Street notices were inadequate and not maintained in 
position 

Street notices were replaced and additional 
ones put up throughout the advertisement 
period. 

1 “Nothing is mentioned about the 2 hour visitor slots, or 
the £1.70 per visitor cost, or the fact you need your ID to 
get the permits, extra £5 if you want to take on the day, 
if your permit drops off the window in the hear/cold £70 
parking ticket you can't get rid of, nor pay and 
bailiffs kicking your door in. Nobody is aware of this if 
you walk around the streets.” 

Information on permit charges and types was 
included in the questionnaire that was sent out 
in July 2019.  
If someone considers a PCN has been issued 
incorrectly they are able to appeal. 

1 “If the residents parking is wanted and that good, then 
why is there nobody on the Sincil Bank community site 
defending it, or giving any reasons for it? “       

Some parking schemes are very emotive. 
People may not feel comfortable expressing 
their views either way, where they may attract 
attention or argument from other people. 

1 The county council website says " in compliance with 
GDPR we will not identify properties either in favour or 
against the introduction of the scheme.  But the 
questionnaire returns give the name and address of 
people.  

The County Council will not identify properties 
either in favour or against the introduction of the 
scheme. 

1 “Can our local community officer, knock on doors and 
see how many people that want the RPS still live there 
and are they aware of the consequences for everyone 
else, just so they can park outside their own house?” 

The scheme is being proposed by Lincolnshire 
County Council, the local community officer 
works for City of Lincoln Council. 

1 “Why do they need to be 'different zones' Those thinking 
they can still see their friends three streets away are 
risking a £70 invoice, 2 hours only visit or £1.70 for 
scratch card.  Nor does it mention you can't visit your 
friend in their residents parking zone with your pass. 
Why do they need to be different zones, in this 
area?  This is clearly being forced and I have no doubts 
the community will just override everything and not care 
about it.” 

In this case the Sincil Bank Drain and its bridges 
forms a natural boundary between proposed 
Zones 5C and 5D. Zone 5C and 5B are 
separated by the High Street. The Zones are 
different sizes because of these boundaries. 

1 They are just going to delete all objections, behind 
closed doors  
 

Objections are reported to the County Councils 
Planning and Regulation Committee. 
A single valid objection will be put forward for 
consideration by the committee. The outcome 
does not necessarily depend upon the number 
of objections received. 
 

1 “How do I appeal?  Got to be ready for this, It's really is 
a dumb idea residents parking. 
No benefit at all, be the same 'day cars' 90% of the time 
anyway, scheme not working at night so is pointless.” 

Objections are being considered by the County 
Council’s Planning and Regulation Committee. 
If the Order is made an application may be 
made to the High Court within six weeks. 

1 “Your friend comes round, to help you lift new double 
bed upstairs, etc etc,   ' look at our new residents 
parking signs we have'  Bloke goes out to his car after 
trapping his fingers between the bed and wall to a find a 
£70 parking invoice, nobody was expecting, no warning 
of that or the scratch card, utter shambles.” 
 

Loading and unloading is permitted. 
If someone considers a PCN has been issued 
incorrectly they are able to appeal. 

Page 34



3 “Not one valid reason for it, utter con, like central 
government has said you need to introduce these 
scams” 

The reasons for the scheme are outlined” in the 
main body of the report. 

1 The residents parking allow you to park in council car 
parks, but not broad gate, why is this?  you can only 
park in the ones that cars always get broken into.” 

City of Lincoln Council administer and manage 
the permit scheme and the use of their car 
parks. 

1  “Should be available in local shops.” City of Lincoln Council administer and manage 
the permit scheme. 

1 “The permits must be able to ordered only from City 
Hall, at weird times, like 10:30- 11:12 only.  So it irritates 
even those who wanted it because it’s not straight 
forward.” 

City of Lincoln Council administer and manage 
the permit scheme. 

1 “Disabled people getting free permits? Everyone should 
be made to pay for permits” 

City of Lincoln Council administer and manage 
the permit scheme. 

1 “In one of the streets, a family have three vehicles 
(minimum), What will they do when it's only two permits 
per house?” 

City of Lincoln Council have a maximum of two 
annual permits per property. 
Daily scratch cards or limited waiting may be 
used to facilitate parking by a third vehicle.  
Only City of Lincoln Council can change this 
limit. 

11 “Often Park on Scorer Street and usually get close to 
the work. Restricting access will be hard for staff. Often 
have equipment to take to and from work, sometimes 
taking two trips. This will be impossible if we can’t park 
close to where we work. We appreciate that for 
residents it must be hard to park at times but please 
consider the impact on the people who work to educate 
the children in the area. “ 

The introduction of the scheme would remove 
available all day on street parking from a 
number of workplaces in the area. 
This leaves people with a number of difficult 
choices to make on how best to get to work and 
park near to it. The nearest City of Lincoln 
owned car parks in the area are off King Street 
and Chaplin Street. The charge for a stay of 4 
hours or over is £6.00. This would be an extra 
£30 per week for workers in the area. Vehicles 
may be temporarily parked on the proposed 
restrictions to enable equipment may be 
loaded/unloaded. 

1 “The scheme, in my opinion, will make no difference to 
parking within this area because the issue is not the 
occasional shopper or worker who parks in the area to 
avoid car parking charges, but the number of cars per 
household in an area not designed for that number of 
cars.” 

The scheme will have little impact outside the 
times of operation. 

2 “The West End is a prime example of the permit system 
not working, with residents getting tickets when their 
area is over parked.” 

Each scheme has specific factors which may 
cause issues. Shared use bays are being 
proposed on a number of streets so permit 
holders can continue to use them rather than get 
a PCN for exceeding the time limit. 

1 “If the aim is to improve parking in these areas, another 
strategy needs to be found to reduce the number of 
vehicles. Better use of a TRO would be to limit certain 
vehicles from accessing and parking in these areas. If 
the aim is to deter shoppers and workers parking in 
neighbouring streets, the council should look at reducing 
the car park charges and enticing their use.” 

Car park charges at City of Lincoln car parks are 
a matter for that authority. 

1 “The scheme is open to abuse because with a visitor's 
permit, anyone can park. I have already heard that 
residents are selling visitor's permits, at a profit, to local 
workers.” 

The administration of the scheme is done by 
City of Lincoln Council 

1 “Whilst I acknowledge there have been projects to help 
make Sincil Bank a better place to live, LCC is not doing 
its best for the finances of residents in this area of 
Lincoln. Recently, fuel costs have risen with an 
expectation of them rising again, food banks are a 
necessity for too many https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-
england-lincolnshire-61510584.amp. Council Tax band 
A properties are already £55 worse off from last year in 
this ward. Litter picking, art work and CCTV will not help 
with the cost of living.  

Residents received a letter when the proposals 
were advertised which contained links to further 
information on the County Council’s website 
relating to the proposals and also the City of 
Lincoln’s website so people could see how the 
permit scheme would work. 
The questionnaire survey and the majority 
response met the policy in place in 2019. 

Page 35

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-lincolnshire-61510584.amp
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-lincolnshire-61510584.amp


It cannot be claimed that it would encourage the use of 
public transport as buses and trains are very irregular, 
very expensive and don’t run later at night. Even taxis 
are difficult to book.  
To conclude, these are the reasons I believe the Sincil 
Bank Residents’ Parking scheme should not happen. 
There has been nothing to offer for why this scheme 
should go ahead; persuasive wording on official letters; 
the statistics showing how many people have “asked” 
for the scheme is skewed and the reality is a low 
percentage of residents; the Income Deprivation Domain 
for this area shows residents will struggle to afford an 
extra annual bill; and there has been no user-friendly 
factual information given to residents (or easily 
searchable online).  
The whole scheme is a disgrace!” 

In terms of the impact of individual finances the 
timing of the scheme if it goes ahead would be a 
matter for both Council’s to agree upon.  
Permit fees are set by City of Lincoln Council. 

2 “According to the Lincolnshire.gov.uk website, 30% of 
eligible addresses must reply to a consultation and 66% 
must be in favour. Neither of these conditions have been 
met so this scheme should not be going ahead 
anyway. “ 

The questionnaire was undertaken in 2019 when 
the policy in place needed a simple majority of 
the responses received and there was no 
minimum response level. This still applies for 
District Council managed schemes. The more 
recent guidance provided on the LCC website 
refers to new schemes administered by the 
County Council only. 

1 “This scheme will not resolve the parking issues for 
Pennell Street, making it an additional and unnecessary 
expense at a time when all households are being hit 
incredibly hard with energy price increases and the cost 
of living crisis. Implementing this scheme now is both 
cruel and harmful, and even those that originally 
supported the scheme likely have a different opinion in 
light of current financial constraints.  
Parking on Pennell Street can occasionally be a 
problem, but at other times is not an issue at all. 
Basically, it fluctuates depending on how many cars 
residents own - I know this is stating the obvious, but 
this is the bottom line, and no parking permit scheme 
will ever change this.  
Many of the parking problems that we do have are 
caused by inconsiderate parking (e.g. taking up two 
spaces just to be directly outside of a property) – again, 
parking permits will not resolve this in the slightest.  
Outside of these everyday issues, one of the biggest 
parking pressures we have is when Lincoln City are 
playing at home, and whilst the permit scheme may help 
with this for Saturday matches, it will not help at all with 
Sunday and evening matches as these fall outside of 
the scheme’s parameters.  
Another pressure on daytime parking is staff & visitors to 
the school at the top of the street – as the scheme will 
allow the school to purchase both resident and visitor 
permits, the scheme will do nothing to reduce these 
pressures or free up extra space.   
The scheme also seems very complicated, with a lot of 
scope for misunderstanding and confusion, particularly 
in relation to visitor and trade permits and the 
associated time limitations, which in turn will potentially 
lead to extra costs and possible fines, and cause 
residents a huge amount of frustration and stress.  
The requirements for trade visits look to be particularly 
problematic and inconvenient – we all need to have 
maintenance work carried out, but to have to apply for a 
waiver permit, and wait at least 5 working days for one 
to be granted, is not feasible in many cases, as many 
trades need to visit at much shorter notice. The permits 
also add a considerable amount to the cost of having 

The proposals include a small limited waiting 
bay at the High Street end of Pennell Street, 
with parking for the most part maintained as at 
present. 
The costs of permits are set by City of Lincoln 
Council as they administer the scheme. 
People often assume a space is guaranteed 
outside their house, even when information sent 
out, such as in the original questionnaire, says 
this is not the case. 
City of Lincoln Council is keen to see the 
scheme introduced in order to reduce traffic 
flows and parking levels to aid regeneration 
within the area. 
 

Page 36



any work done – another unnecessary and unwelcome 
burden in these difficult financial times. There is also the 
impression that permission may not be granted, which 
raises the question- how do we get maintenance work 
done if the tradesperson cannot park near the 
property?   
Time limited waiting bays are also mentioned – would 
Pennell Street have these? If so this would reduce the 
available parking even further, exacerbating the original 
problem rather than doing anything to resolve it.  
Supporters of the scheme also seem to be under the 
misguided notion that the scheme will guarantee them a 
parking spot outside their property – this is very much 
not the case, and I think these misunderstandings need 
to be clearly communicated, otherwise the scheme is 
being implemented under false pretences.  
I would also add that the feedback I have seen from 
areas with parking permits already in place suggests 
that the schemes have caused far more problems than 
they have solved, and caused great inconvenience and 
large additional costs, with many residents being fined 
for parking elsewhere when spaces are not available on 
their street, or because they have misunderstood the 
rather complicated rules. The general impression I get is 
that they wish the schemes had never been 
implemented in the first place.  
For all of these reasons I strongly believe that the 
proposed parking permit scheme will be nothing more 
than an admin heavy, money making exercise, that will 
cause a lot of expense, inconvenience, frustration and 
stress to the residents of Pennell Street, whilst offering 
little or no value in return, and not resolving the existing 
parking pressures. Not being able to find a parking 
space occasionally is annoying, but having to pay for a 
parking permit, faff around with visitor permits every 
time a friend wants to pop round, potentially even pay to 
have friends call round once your free permits have 
been used, pay extra for trades to do work (as the cost 
will be passed on) and still sometimes not be able to 
park (as will likely be the case for all the reasons I have 
mentioned above) will be absolutely infuriating, and will 
do nothing to gain the council support from the local 
residents! 
I would strongly urge that this permit scheme is 
cancelled, for Pennell Street at least, or at the very least 
delayed, whilst a second consultation can take place in 
light of the current cost of living crisis, to check that 
residents fully understand, still support, and can afford 
this scheme. “ 

1 “Whoever wrote the article in the Sincil Bank community 
news, should be made to issue a public apology for 
such a misleading article.” 

The publication concerned is not a County 
Council document. 

1 Visit friends and family in the area Limited waiting is being maintained within the 
proposed Zone and scratch cards will be 
available to residents to give to visitors with the 
conditions of use as specified by City of Lincoln 
Council. 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        1 
 

 

  
Equality Impact Analysis to enable informed decisions

The purpose of this document is to:-
I. help decision makers fulfil their duties under the Equality Act 2010 and 
II. for you to evidence  the positive and adverse impacts of the proposed change on people with protected characteristics and ways to 

mitigate or eliminate any adverse impacts.

Using this form
This form must be updated and reviewed as your evidence on a proposal for a project/service change/policy/commissioning of a service or 
decommissioning of a service evolves taking into account any consultation feedback, significant changes to the proposals and data to support 
impacts of proposed changes. The key findings of the most up to date version of the Equality Impact Analysis must be explained in the report 
to the decision maker and the Equality Impact Analysis must be attached to the decision making report.

**Please make sure you read the information below so that you understand what is required under the Equality Act 2010**

Equality Act 2010
The Equality Act 2010 applies to both our workforce and our customers. Under the Equality Act 2010, decision makers are under a personal 
duty, to have due (that is proportionate) regard to the need to protect and promote the interests of persons with protected characteristics. 

Protected characteristics
The protected characteristics under the Act are: age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity; 
race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation.

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
Section 149 requires a public authority to have due regard to the need to:

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is prohibited by/or under the Act
• Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share relevant protected characteristics and persons who do not share those 

characteristics                                          
• Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

P
age 39



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        2 
 

 

  
The purpose of Section 149 is to get decision makers to consider the impact their decisions may or will have on those with protected 
characteristics and by evidencing the impacts on people with protected characteristics decision makers should be able to demonstrate 'due 
regard'.

Decision makers duty under the Act
Having had careful regard to the Equality Impact Analysis, and also the consultation responses, decision makers are under a personal duty to 
have due regard to the need to protect and promote the interests of persons with protected characteristics (see above) and to:-    

(i) consider and analyse how the decision is likely to affect those with protected characteristics, in practical terms,
(ii) remove any unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other prohibited conduct,
(iii) consider whether practical steps should be taken to mitigate or avoid any adverse consequences that the decision is likely to  have, for 

persons with protected characteristics and, indeed, to consider whether the decision should not be taken at all, in the interests of 
persons with protected characteristics,

(iv)  consider whether steps should be taken to advance equality, foster good relations and generally promote the interests of persons with 
protected characteristics, either by varying the recommended decision or by taking some other decision.

Conducting an Impact Analysis

The Equality Impact Analysis is a process to identify the impact or likely impact a project, proposed service change, commissioning, 
decommissioning or policy will have on people with protected characteristics listed above. It should be considered at  the beginning of the 
decision making process.
 
The Lead Officer responsibility 
This is the person writing the report for the decision maker. It is the responsibility of the Lead Officer to make sure that the Equality Impact 
Analysis is robust and proportionate to the decision being taken.

Summary of findings
You must provide a clear and concise summary of the key findings of this Equality Impact Analysis in the decision making report and attach 
this Equality Impact Analysis to the report.  

P
age 40



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        3 
 

 

  
Impact – definition

An impact is an intentional or unintentional lasting consequence or significant change to people's lives brought about by an action or series of 
actions.

How much detail to include? 
The Equality Impact Analysis should be proportionate to the impact of proposed change. In deciding this asking simple questions “Who might 
be affected by this decision?” "Which protected characteristics might be affected?" and “How might they be affected?”  will help you consider 
the extent to which you already have evidence, information and data, and where there are gaps that you will need to explore. Ensure the 
source and date of any existing data is referenced.
You must consider both obvious and any less obvious impacts. Engaging with people with the protected characteristics will help you to identify 
less obvious impacts as these groups share their perspectives with you.

A given proposal may have a positive impact on one or more protected characteristics and have an adverse impact on others. You must 
capture these differences in this form to help decision makers to arrive at a view as to where the balance of advantage or disadvantage lies. If 
an adverse impact is unavoidable then it must be clearly justified and recorded as such, with an explanation as to why no steps can be taken to 
avoid the impact. Consequences must be included.

Proposals for more than one option If more than one option is being proposed you must ensure that the Equality Impact Analysis covers all 
options. Depending on the circumstances, it may be more appropriate to complete an Equality Impact Analysis for each option.

The information you provide in this form must be sufficient to allow the decision maker to fulfil their role as above. You must include 
the latest version of the Equality Impact Analysis with the report to the decision maker. Please be aware that the information in this 

form must be able to stand up to legal challenge.

P
age 41



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        4 
 

 

 

 

Title of the policy / project / service 
being considered  

Traffic Regulation Order to introduce 
permit only parking bays in various 
streets, Sincil Bank, Lincoln 

Person / people completing analysis Jeanne Gibson, Programme Leader 
Minor Works & Traffic 

Service Area 
 

Place Highways Asset Lead Officer Jeanne Gibson 

Who is the decision maker? 
 

Planning and Regulation Committee How was the Equality Impact Analysis 
undertaken? 

By review 

Date of meeting when decision will 
be made 

07/11/2022 Version control 1.0 

Is this proposed change to an 
existing policy/service/project or is 
it new? 

New LCC directly delivered, commissioned, 
re-commissioned or de-
commissioned? 

Directly delivered 

Describe the proposed change 
 
 
 

The traffic regulation order proposes to introduce bays available to permit holders only within the existing unrestricted sections 
of a number of streets in the Sincil Bank area of Lincoln. 

Background Information

P
age 42



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Evidencing the impacts
In this section you will explain the difference that proposed changes are likely to make on people with protected characteristics.
To help you do this  first consider the impacts the proposed changes may have on people without protected characteristics before then 
considering the impacts the proposed changes may have on people with protected characteristics.

You must evidence here who will benefit and how they will benefit. If there are no benefits that you can identify please state 'No 
perceived benefit' under the relevant protected characteristic. You can add sub categories under the protected characteristics to make 
clear the impacts. For example under Age you may have considered the impact on 0-5 year olds or people aged 65 and over, under 
Race you may have considered Eastern European migrants, under Sex you may have considered specific impacts on men.

Data to support impacts of proposed changes 
When considering the equality impact of a decision it is important to know who the people are that will be affected by any change.

Population data and the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
The Lincolnshire Research Observatory (LRO) holds a range of population data by the protected characteristics. This can help put a 
decision into context. Visit the LRO website and its population theme page by following this link: http://www.research-lincs.org.uk  If you 
cannot find what you are looking for, or need more information, please contact the LRO team. You will also find information about the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment on the LRO website.

Workforce profiles
You can obtain information by many of the protected characteristics for the Council's workforce and comparisons with the labour market 
on the Council's website.  As of 1st April 2015, managers can obtain workforce profile data by the protected characteristics for their 
specific areas using Agresso.

P
age 43

http://www.research-lincs.org.uk/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/residents/community-and-living/equality-and-diversity/a-strategic-approach-equality-and-diversity/valuing-our-workforce/community-and-workforce-statistics/52342.article


 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        6 
 

 

 

 

Age No positive impact 

Disability Restriction of non permit holders in the area by virtue of this scheme will reduce competition for on street parking space 
and therefore parking closer to a resident’s property is more likely. Blue Badge holders will be eligible for a free parking 
permit for the proposed zone. 

Gender reassignment No positive impact 

Marriage and civil partnership No positive impact 

Pregnancy and maternity No positive impact 

Race No positive impact 

Religion or belief No positive impact 

Positive impacts
The proposed change may have the following positive impacts on persons with protected characteristics – If no positive impact, please state 
'no positive impact'.

P
age 44



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        7 
 

Sex No positive impact 

Sexual orientation No positive impact 

 

 

If you have identified positive impacts for other groups not specifically covered by the protected characteristics in the Equality Act 
2010 you can include them here if it will help the decision maker to make an informed decision. 
 

P
age 45



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Age No perceived adverse impact 

Disability No perceived adverse impact 

Gender reassignment No perceived adverse impact 

Marriage and civil partnership No perceived adverse impact  

Pregnancy and maternity No perceived adverse impact 

Negative impacts of the proposed change and practical steps to mitigate or avoid any adverse consequences on people with 
protected characteristics are detailed below. If you have not identified any mitigating action to reduce an adverse impact please 
state 'No mitigating action identified'.

Adverse/negative impacts 
You must evidence how people with protected characteristics will be adversely impacted and any proposed mitigation to reduce or eliminate 
adverse impacts. An adverse impact causes disadvantage or exclusion. If such an impact is identified please state how, as far as possible, it 
is justified; eliminated; minimised or counter balanced by other measures. 
If there are no adverse impacts that you can identify please state 'No perceived adverse impact' under the relevant protected characteristic.

P
age 46



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        9 
 

Race No perceived adverse impact 

Religion or belief No perceived adverse impact 

Sex No perceived adverse impact 

Sexual orientation No perceived adverse impact 

 

If you have identified negative impacts for other groups not specifically covered by the protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 you 
can include them here if it will help the decision maker to make an informed decision. 
 

P
age 47



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Objective(s) of the EIA consultation/engagement activity 
 
The traffic regulation order required to introduce the scheme has been subject to a statutory process of consultation and public advertisement . 

Stakeholders

Stake holders are people or groups who may be directly affected (primary stakeholders) and indirectly affected (secondary stakeholders)

You must evidence here who you involved in gathering your evidence about benefits, adverse impacts and practical steps to mitigate or avoid 
any adverse consequences. You must be confident that any engagement was meaningful. The Community engagement team can help you to 
do this and you can contact them at engagement@lincolnshire.gov.uk

State clearly what (if any) consultation or engagement activity took place by stating who you involved when compiling this EIA under the 
protected characteristics. Include organisations you invited and organisations who attended, the date(s) they were involved and method of 
involvement i.e. Equality Impact Analysis workshop/email/telephone conversation/meeting/consultation. State clearly the objectives of the EIA 
consultation and findings from the EIA consultation under each of the protected characteristics. If you have not covered any of the protected 
characteristics please state the reasons why they were not consulted/engaged. 

P
age 48

mailto:engagement@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        11 
 

 

 

 

Age  

Disability  

Gender reassignment  

Marriage and civil partnership  

Pregnancy and maternity  

Race  

Religion or belief  

Who was involved in the EIA consultation/engagement activity? Detail any findings identified by the protected characteristic

P
age 49



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        12 
 

Sex  

Sexual orientation  

Are you confident that everyone who 
should have been involved in producing 
this version of the Equality Impact 
Analysis has been involved in a 
meaningful way? 
The purpose is to make sure you have got 
the perspective of all the protected 
characteristics. 

The public advertisement of these proposals was open to all to submit comments and representations. 

Once the changes have been 
implemented how will you undertake 
evaluation of the benefits and how 
effective the actions to reduce adverse 
impacts have been? 

Should the scheme be implemented its effects can be monitored. 
 

P
age 50



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        13 
 

 

 

 

Are you handling personal data?  Yes 
 
If yes, please give details. 
 
Comments and representations received from the public may contain personal data. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Action Lead officer Timescale Actions required 
Include any actions identified in this 
analysis for on-going monitoring of 
impacts. 

Monitoring of the effects of the change 
to parking arrangements in the Sincil 
Bank area. 

Jeanne Gibson 12 months from operable date of Order. 

 

Version Description Created/amended 
by 

Date 
created/amended 

Approved by Date 
approved 

1.0 Lincoln, Sincil Bank, various streete – proposed 
residents permit scheme 

J Gibson 26/10/22   

 

 

 

E
x
a
m
p
l
e
s 
o
f 
a 
D
e
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n
'
V
e
r
s
i
o
n 
i
s
s
u
e
d 
a
s 
p
a
r
t 
o
f 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
'
'
I
s
s
u
e
d 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n 
w
i
t
h 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y 
g
r
o
u
p
s
'
'
I
s
s
u
e
d 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t 
f
o
r 
a 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e 
c
h
a
n
g
e
; 
I
s
s
u
e
d 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n 
w
i
t
h 
s
u
p
p
l
i
e
r
'

Further Details

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson, Executive Director - Place 
 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 5 December 2022 

Subject: 
Lincoln, Proposed Permit Parking Scheme Zone 5D – Roads 
between Sincil Bank Drain, Canwick Road, Sincil Bank Football 
ground and the East West Link Road. 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report considers objections received to the above proposal which has been 
publicly advertised from Thursday 22 September to Friday 28 October 2022. 
 
 

Recommendation(s)  

That the objections be overruled and that the scheme as advertised (Appendix B) be 
introduced, with the inclusion of the minor modifications at Chelmsford Street, Hope 
Street and Portland Street (Appendix D). 
 
 
Background 
 
In 2017, the City of Lincoln Council developed a new approach to working in 
neighbourhoods. The profile and needs of the Sincil Bank area were such that a decision 
was taken to focus resources on improvements here, working closely with the local 
community to identify a range of actions that would result in transformational change. 
One of the key aims is to reduce the high level of commuter parking in the area and the 
traffic movements this generates. This results in congested streets, restricted footpaths, 
busy rat runs and poor air quality, and has a negative impact on the quality of life for 
residents. 
 
A scheme of environmental highway improvements is planned towards the end of next 
year to support this vision, and the proposed permit parking scheme is a step towards the 
regeneration of the area, supporting the community’s aspiration to give streets back to 
local people and to promote shared spaces less dominated by traffic. 
 
A formal request was received in 2018 from the City of Lincoln Council for an expansion of 
the permit parking scheme south of the city centre, to include the Sincil Bank area. 
Subsequently investigations took place to confirm if these streets would be eligible for 
such a scheme in line with County Council guidance. At this stage the area was spilt into 3 

Page 53

Agenda Item 5.4



Zones, 5C, 5DW and 5DE.  Surveys confirmed that available kerbside space for on street 
parking in Zones 5DW and 5C during the day was limited for residents owing to use of the 
area by non-residents. In July 2019 a questionnaire was sent to all properties within the 
proposed Zone 5C and Zone 5DW asking if residents would be in support of the 
introduction of a permit parking scheme.  In accordance with the Council’s guidance for 
District Council administered schemes, a majority of respondents must be in support for it 
to be viable. The results indicated that 64% were in favour in Zone 5C, and 57% in favour 
in Zone 5DW, enabling the scheme to be progressed.  Zone 5DE did not meet the 
intervention levels regarding parking levels so a questionnaire was not sent out at that 
time. At a meeting with officers and the Portfolio Holder for Highways on 10th March 2020 
it was agreed that a questionnaire consultation should be undertaken in Zone 5DE as this 
would be the most likely area for displaced parking to occur and that omitting it from the 
scheme would disadvantage residents here.  The questionnaire consultation for Zone 5DE 
took place in October /November 2020 and was assessed in the same way as the other 
consultations for consistency.  There was a majority of 57 % of those who responded 
being in favour. 
 
Subsequently the Zone boundaries 5C, 5DW and 5DE were changed into Zones 5C and 5D. 
This meant that the Zones would be larger and divided by the bridges over Sincil Bank 
Drain and would provide a clearer boundary between the Zones, as shown at Appendix B. 
The results of the questionnaire consultation were reassessed in line with the revised zone 
boundaries and 60% of those who responded in Zone 5D were in favour of the scheme, 
which meets the required threshold for a permit parking scheme. 
 
The proposed scheme will be operational from Monday to Saturday, 8am to 6pm. Dual 
use bays providing a two hour stay for non-permit holders and an unlimited period for 
permit holders will be introduced and a similar treatment is proposed for the existing 
limited waiting bays. There are some lengths of double yellow lines proposed as part of 
the scheme which in the main involve junction protection and accesses. The City of Lincoln 
Council, as the permit issuing authority, confirmed which properties within the Zone 
would be eligible for permits. 
 
Statutory consultation for the traffic regulation order took place from 23 July to 20 August 
2021. No adverse comments were received. The scheme was then publicly advertised 
from 22 September to 28 October, with each property in the Zone being sent a copy of the 
proposals. 
 
Objections 
 
During the advertisement period 32 objections to the scheme were received.  Various 
grounds for objection were referenced and these are itemised in more detail, along with 
officer’s comments, at Appendix C. 
 
Common themes of the objections are: 

 That the cost of permits is an additional burden to residents who are already 
having difficulties because of wider economic circumstances, when the benefits of 
the scheme are negligible at best. 

Page 54



 That the limit of two annual permits (either two residents permits or one annual 
permit and an annual visitor permit) is not practical for families in the area, or 
houses of multiple occupation, which may affect decisions on employment and 
further education. 

 That most of the area has available parking during the proposed times of operation 
at present and the scheme does nothing to address the issues of parking in the 
evenings and on Sundays. 

 That the response to the questionnaires was low and that the actual number of 
people wanting a scheme in 2022, now details have been advertised, would be 
lower still. 

 That the scheme is not being proposed to benefit residents, but as another means 
of the Council raising revenue. 

 That businesses located in the area will be adversely affected as parking for staff is 
significantly reduced, as is that of customers. Businesses have also asked if the 
number of permits can be increased to be proportionate to staff levels, rather than 
be limited at two. Businesses have also commented that if staff need to pay to 
park, it may have an adverse effect on their viability. 

 That the number of spaces available will be reduced by formal parking bays and 
that residents may be forced to park in different streets. 

 That details of the proposals and how residents’ parking schemes operate were 
difficult to understand. 

 That press articles during the advertisement gave the impression that the scheme 
would be introduced regardless, which influenced the number of objections 
received. 

 That properties ineligible for permits on Kesteven Street need to be included. 
 That there needs to be more 2 hour parking in the area for visitors to residents and 

businesses. 
 That some lengths of double yellow lines proposed need to be reassessed 

particularly in Bishop King Court, St Andrews Place and Hope Street. 
 
Comments  
 
Any decision on this proposal will take into account the effect of increases in the costs 
borne by residents at this time and in the coming months. It is recognised that the scheme 
will have limitations in terms of provision for permit holders during the evenings. It is 
designed to exclude non-residents when there is demand from them during the day, but 
more space for residents and permit holders outside this time cannot be provided; neither 
does the scheme guarantee a parking space at any time. The concerns of businesses 
within the proposed zone have been noted, but the aim of the scheme is to give permit 
holders priority over commuters. There are alternative places to park both off and on 
street, although these may be less convenient and could incur costs for workers. 
Temporary parking is permitted on yellow lines for the purposes of loading and unloading 
of equipment should this be required. Parking by visitors and carers is provided for 
through the scheme’s visitor permit system. The consultation exercise included details of 
the workings of the scheme and where additional information can be found.  In terms of 
how information is presented on plans comments have been noted and this will be 
reflected in the information presented for similar schemes in the future. The charges for 

Page 55



permits are set at a level which covers the costs of administering the scheme and 
enforcing it. The City of Lincoln Council determines the costs of permits and the number of 
permits that can be purchased for each property. Their Parking Services Team have 
confirmed that the two-permit limit will not be increased. The City of Lincoln Council is 
also responsible for determining which properties would be eligible for permits and have 
been approached to see if further consideration can be given to those properties on 
Kesteven Street that were originally left out. 
 
In recognition of feedback from some objectors a number of minor modifications to this 
scheme are proposed as shown at Appendix D. The details of these are: 
 

1) Chelmsford Street: It is proposed to replace the No Waiting at Any Time restriction 
on the south side with an additional bay for permit holders. 

2) Hope Street: It is proposed to replace the No Waiting at Any Time restriction on 
the west side with an additional bay for permit holders. 

3) Portland Street: It is proposed to replace the permit holder only bays on both sides 
with dual 2 hour/permit holder bays. 

4) Scorer Street: a request has been received for additional double yellow lines. In the 
context of the scheme, parking here will more likely be by residents only so it 
would be residents and their visitors who would be adversely affected by this 
change. It is therefore not recommended that this amendment is taken forward. 

 
Conclusion 
 
In tandem with the proposed Zone 5C permit parking scheme, Zone 5D will contribute to 
ongoing initiatives to improve the environment in the Sincil Bank area. The provision of 
bays for permit holders and short-term parking only, restricts parking by non-residents 
and the additional traffic they generate. Although the scheme involves a cost to residents 
it may facilitate future improvements in the area which will deter through traffic further 
and deliver improved routes and safety for pedestrians and cyclists.  
 
Consultation 
 
The following were consulted with regards to this proposal: Local Member, Lincolnshire 
Road Safety Partnership, Lincolnshire Police, City of Lincoln Council, Lincolnshire Fire & 
Rescue, East Midlands Ambulance Trust, Road Haulage Association, Freight Transport 
Association, Lincoln BIG and Lincoln City Football Club. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

See attached Equality Impact Assessment. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



Appendices 
 
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 
Appendix A Site location 
Appendix B Detail of proposed restrictions 
Appendix C List of objections and comments 
Appendix D Proposed minor modifications to the scheme 
Appendix E Equality Impact Assessment 

 
 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied 
upon in the writing of this report. 
 
Document title Where the document can be viewed 
Assessment and survey information; 
Consultation documents and 
correspondence. 

Available on request 

 
This report was written by Dan O’Neill, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
TRO@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A – Site location : Lincoln, Proposed Permit Parking Scheme Zone 5D 

               

P
age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



NORTH

A3

 
N

o
v
 
1

6
,
2

0
2

2
 
-
 
9

:
4

2
a

m
 
G

:
\
c
o

m
m

o
n

\
T

r
a

f
f
i
c
 
R

e
g

u
l
a

t
i
o

n
 
O

r
d

e
r
s
\
S

c
h

e
m

e
s
 
M

a
s
t
e

r
 
F

o
l
d

e
r
 
D

O
 
N

O
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E
\
5

0
1

-
9

0
0

\
8

3
0

 
S

i
n

c
i
l
 
B

a
n

k
 
R

P
S

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
\
C

A
D

\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
s
\
P

r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
5

D
 
r
e

w
o

r
k
i
n

g
 
o

n
 
n

a
r
r
o

w
 
r
o

a
d

s
.
d

w
g

Project

Status Project No.

Scale

Drawn

Ch'kd

Auth Traced

Date

Date

Drawing No. Rev.

Drawing Title

Project

Rev.

Description

Drawn Ch'kd Auth Date

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

Lancaster House,36 Orchard Street,Lincoln,LN1 1XX

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019

Ordnance Survey 100025370.

Sincil Bank RPS

Zone 5D

NTS

DON Jul 2022

D/SCH830/5D/2 0

A p p e n d i x  B

Page 61

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
SCORER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
78 to 124

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
2 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
PORTLAND STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
Sincil Dike

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
LEWIS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
Health Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
23b

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
Pipeline

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
70a

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
70c

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
Wyvern House

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
KESTEVEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
HENRY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
DUNLOP STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
SAUSTHORPE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
Sincil Dike

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
HOOD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
SINCIL BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
Sincil Dike

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
NELTHORPE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
CHARLES STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
TROLLOPE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
ST ANDREW'S PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
CHELMSFORD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
WALNUT PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
13a

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
STANLEY PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
PALMER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
Dunston House

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
CROSS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
26a

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
A57

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
Clifton Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
A57

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
ARCHER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
CLIFTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
Courtyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
4 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
KESTEVEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
113 to 115

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
CROSS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
27a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
HERMIT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
23c

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
SINCIL BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
23a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
Homer Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
MONSON COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
Sincil Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
Monson

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
Chequers

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
ST ANDREWS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
The Lincoln

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
Bishop King

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
Church of England

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
PARK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
Sausthorpe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
SINCIL BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
BISHOP KING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
EDNA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
37a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
102a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
THESIGER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
LONSDALE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
GRACE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
CROSS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
MARTIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
RIPON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
KIRKBY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
LUMLEY PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
THESIGER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
CANWICK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
HOPE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
LANCASTER PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
KINGSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
LINTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
NORRIS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
ARTHUR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
ST ANDREW'S STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
32c

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
9 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
Cheriton

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
6 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
Loren House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
Zone Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
Existing No waiting at any time No waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm Goods vehicle loading bay 1 hour limited waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
Proposed Permit holders 5D only Mon-Sat 8am-6pm No waiting at any time No waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm 1 hour limited waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm except permit holders 5D 2 hours limited waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm except permit holders 5D



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 

Objections and Comments: Lincoln Sincil Bank permit parking Zone 5D 
No of 
objections 

Grounds for objection Comment 

12 There are no problems parking in the 
area and no reason for a scheme. 
 

The reasons for the scheme are outlined in 
the main body of the report. 
Residents parking schemes remove 
parking by third parties, whether they be 
working in the area, in the City Centre or 
shopping. This means residents have a 
greater opportunity to park within their 
Zone during its times of operation. 
 
City of Lincoln Council is responsible for 
the administration of the scheme, which 
means that they set the maximum number 
of permits per household and the level of 
charges for permits, as well as what permit 
types are available.  
It is up to the Planning and Regulation 
Committee to determine how to proceed 
following the consideration of the 
objections received. 

11 All prices are going up and the scheme 
will add to these issues as people will 
not have the money to pay for permits. 

The Planning and Regulation Committee 
will determine how to proceed following the 
consideration of the objections received. 

5 As parking is to be paid for a space 
should be guaranteed. 

Residents parking schemes remove 
parking by third parties, whether they be 
working in the area, in the City Centre or 
shopping. This means residents have a 
greater opportunity to park within their 
Zone during its times of operation. 

4 Serious concerns about how family, 
carers and friends will be able to visit 

Limited waiting is being introduced within 
the proposed Zone and scratch cards will 
be available to residents to give to visitors 
with the conditions of use as specified by 
City of Lincoln Council. 

7 Two annual permits is not enough as 
cars are needed to go to work. 

City of Lincoln Council have a maximum of 
two annual permits per property. 
Daily scratch cards or limited waiting may 
be used to facilitate parking by a third 
vehicle.  
Only City of Lincoln can charge this limit 
and have stated they will not. 

3 There will be a negative impact on staff 
working in the area as they may not 
find anywhere near to park or will need 
to pay. 

City of Lincoln Council operates several 
car parks. 
The introduction of the scheme would 
remove available all day on street parking 
from a number of workplaces in the area. 
This leaves people with a number of 
difficult choices to make on how best to get 
to work and park near to it. 

4 Negative impact on businesses in the 
area both for staff and customers. The 
scheme limits the amount of on street 
space available for customers and 
means staff have to park further away, 
either to pay to park or find a location 
with fewer parking restrictions. 

City of Lincoln Council operates several 
car parks. 
The introduction of the scheme would 
remove available all day on street parking 
from a number of workplaces in the area. 
This leaves people with a number of 
difficult choices to make on how best to get 
to work and park near to it. 
City of Lincoln Council sets the amount of 
business permits available within permit 
parking schemes. 

Page 63



 
1 As students are not long-term 

residents it’s unfair for them to pay for 
permits 

City of Lincoln Council is responsible for 
the administration of the scheme, which 
means that they set the maximum number 
of permits per household and the level of 
charges for permits, as well as what permit 
types are available.  

6 The scheme is just being proposed to 
raise revenue for the Council 

The County Council will not derive income 
from permit sales. 

2 People did not want the scheme or 
understand that it would not mean a 
guaranteed space to park 

A reduction in parking by third parties 
would reduce the number of vehicles 
driving within the Zones looking for 
parking. 

1 GDPR a concern as information on 
permits could lead to people being 
identified. 

The objector provided examples whereby a 
permit holder can be traced if someone 
looks at the permit, remembers the vehicle 
it’s in and visits the Zone shown on the 
permit. 

1 No mention of hidden costs in terms of 
exemptions for builders and Penalty 
Charge Notices if permits are not 
displayed. 

Links to information were provided in the 
letters sent to residents during the 
advertisement of the proposals. 

1 £70 per PCN  This figure is reduced if paid within 14 
days.  

1 249 misinformed people agreed to the 
scheme whilst 6000 people live in the 
area. 

Questionnaires were delivered to 
properties for a response by the 
household, not individuals. The 
questionnaires sent out were similar to 
those sent regarding other RPS schemes 
in Lincoln. 

1 You can’t get rid of residents parking 
once its’ been put in. 

The scheme should be reviewed. 

2 All residents parking will do there is 
limit even more the 'free' spaces and 
risk a £70 parking invoice 

There will be a reduction in the amount of 
on street parking places available. It is not 
as much as if parking bays were split into 
parking spaces. Some streets will not have 
formally marked bays as entry signs will 
state they are residents parking unless 
otherwise signed and lined. 

1 You don't enforce the zones you have 
or the regulations you have. 

Enforcement of the Zone can be adjusted. 

1 The consultation should be redone 
every year as people may move into 
and out of the area and circumstances 
can change. 

The scheme should be reviewed. 

3 Information on the scheme was biased  

1 The plans circulated were too small a 
scale and not easy to follow. 

In future large scale parking proposal plans 
should be made larger in scale 
concentrating on adjacent streets rather 
than representing the whole zone in a 
small scale on a single plan.  

1 Street notices were inadequate and 
not maintained in position 

Adequate street notices were erected and 
letters sent to properties within the Zone. 

1 Nothing is mentioned about the 2 hour 
visitor slots, or the £1.70 per visitor 
cost, or the fact you need your id to get 
the permits, extra £5 if you want to 
take on the day, if your permit drops off 
the window in the hear/cold £70 
parking ticket you can't get rid of, nor 
pay and bailiffs kicking your door in. 
Nobody is aware of this if you walk 
around the streets. 

Information on permit charges and types 
was included in the questionnaire that was 
sent out in July 2019.  
If someone considers a PCN has been 
issued incorrectly they are able to appeal. 
The two hour parking bays will be clearly 
signed. 

Page 64



1 Why is there nobody on the Sincil 
Bank community site defending it, or 
giving any reasons for it?        

It’s up to individuals whether they wish to 
comment in any public forum. 

1 The county council website says " in 
compliance with GDPR we will not 
identify properties either in favour or 
against the introduction of the 
scheme).  But the questionnaire 
returns give the name and address of 
people.  

The County Council will not identify 
properties either in favour or against the 
introduction of the scheme. 

1 Can our local community officer, knock 
on doors and see how many people 
that want the RPS still live there and 
are they aware of the consequences 
for everyone else, just so they can 
park outside their own house? 

The scheme is being proposed by 
Lincolnshire County Council, the local 
community officer works for City of Lincoln 
Council. 

1 It should just be one Zone, why do 
they need to be different ones.   

In this case the Sincil Bank Drain and its 
bridges forms a natural boundary between 
proposed Zones 5C and 5D. Zone 5C and 
5B are separated by the High Street. The 
Zones are different sizes because of these 
boundaries. 

1 How do I appeal against the proposals 
and the scheme 

Objections will be considered by the 
County Council’s Planning and Regulation 
Committee 

1 Your friend comes round, to help you 
lift new double bed upstairs, etc etc, ' 
look at our new residents parking signs 
we have' Bloke goes out to his car 
after trapping his fingers between the 
bed and wall to a find a £70 parking 
invoice, nobody was expecting, no 
warning of that or the scratch card, 
utter shambles. 
 

Loading and unloading is permitted. 
If someone considers a PCN has been 
issued incorrectly they are able to appeal 

1 The residents parking allow you to 
park in council car parks, but not 
Broadgate 

City of Lincoln Council administer and 
manage the permit scheme and the use of 
their car parks. 

1  Should be available in local shops. City of Lincoln Council administer and 
manage the permit scheme. 

1 The permits must be ordered through 
City Hall and a bank card is needed, 
why is this? 

City of Lincoln Council administer and 
manage the permit scheme. 

1 Disabled people should not get free 
permits. 

City of Lincoln Council administer and 
manage the permit scheme. 

1 There is no guarantee that charges 
won’t go up. 

City of Lincoln Council administer and 
manage the permit scheme. 

1 House values will go down. There are a number of factors which affect 
house prices and it is difficult to determine 
whether a parking scheme has either a 
positive or negative effect.  

1 If the aim is to deter shoppers and 
workers parking in neighbouring 
streets, the council should look at 
reducing the car park charges and 
enticing their use.  

Car park charges at City of Lincoln car 
parks are a matter for that authority. 

1 The scheme is open to abuse because 
with a visitor's permit, anyone can park 

The administration of the scheme is done 
by City of Lincoln Council 

2 According to the Lincolnshire.gov.uk 
website, 30% of eligible addresses 
must reply to a consultation and 66% 
must be in favour. Neither of these 
conditions have been met so this 
scheme should not be going ahead 
anyway.  

The questionnaire was undertaken in 2019 
when the policy in place needed a simple 
majority of the responses received and 
there was no minimum response level.  

Page 65



2 Does not help with football parking There will be some effects when matches 
take place on Saturdays, but less effect for 
evening or Sunday fixtures 

1 The Sincil Bank community news was 
misleading 

The publication concerned is not a County 
Council document. 

1 The Lincolnshire Echo article said the 
scheme was coming in during April 
2023. This invalidates the consultation 
process. 

The County Council had no input in the 
article concerned. 
 

1 More double yellow lines to protect 
access in Bishop King Court 

See Appendix D 

2 Proposed double yellow lines on Hope 
Street, particularly on the western side 
leading to the turning head will create 
difficulties for residents as parking is 
being lost. 

See Appendix D 

1 More addresses on Kesteven Street 
should be eligible 

City of Lincoln Council make the decision 
on eligibility and have been approached. 

2 Will cause difficulties for landlords of 
rental properties and their tenants. 
This is in terms of maintenance for 
properties and desirability for tenants. 

The City of Lincoln’s website has 
information available so people can  see 
how the permit scheme would work. 
 

3 Too many HMOs and flats in the area 
has created parking issues. 
The scheme will make no difference to 
parking within this area because the 
issue is the number of cars per 
household in an area not designed for 
that number of cars. 

The scheme will have little impact outside 
the times of operation. 

1 Proposed double yellow lines at end of 
St Andrews Place not needed. 

See Appendix D 

1 Illegal parking by disabled badge 
holders on match days needs to be 
enforced where they park around 
junctions. 

Parking Services will be informed of this 
concern 

1 The scheme is a scam which has been 
and is being forced through. 

It is up to the Planning and Regulation 
Committee to determine how to proceed 
following the consideration of the 
objections received. 

 

Page 66



NORTH

A3

 
N

o
v
 
1
8
,
2
0
2
2
 
-
 
1
:
1
0
p
m

 
G

:
\
c
o
m

m
o
n
\
T

r
a
f
f
i
c
 
R

e
g
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
O

r
d
e
r
s
\
S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 
M

a
s
t
e
r
 
F

o
l
d
e
r
 
D

O
 
N

O
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E
\
5
0
1
-
9
0
0
\
8
3
0
 
S

i
n
c
i
l
 
B

a
n
k
 
R

P
S

 
S

c
h
e
m

e
\
C

A
D

\
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
P

r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
5
D

 
i
d
e
a
s
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
a
d
v
e
r
t
.
d
w

g

Project

Status Project No.

Scale Drawn

Ch'kd

Auth Traced

Date

Date

Drawing No. Rev.

Drawing Title

Rev.
Description

Drawn Ch'kd Auth Date

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

Lancaster House,36 Orchard Street,

Lincoln,LN1 1XX

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019

Ordnance Survey 100025370.

Sincil Bank

RPS

Zone D

Changes suggested

during advert

NTS

DON Nov 22

Appendix D 0

P
age 67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
LEWIS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
Courtyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
113 to 115

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
CROSS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
More 2hr exc ph

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
PORTLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
HOPE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
NORRIS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
ARTHUR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
HOPE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
SCORER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
BISHOP KING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
SCORER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
CHELMSFORD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
WALNUT PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
27a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
Change to per hols

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
CHELMSFORD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
Existing No waiting at any time No waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm Goods vehicle loading bay 1 hour limited waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
Proposed Permit holders 5D only Mon-Sat 8am-6pm No waiting at any time No waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm 1 hour limited waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm except permit holders 5D 2 hours limited waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm except permit holders 5D



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        1 
 

 

  
Equality Impact Analysis to enable informed decisions

The purpose of this document is to:-
I. help decision makers fulfil their duties under the Equality Act 2010 and 
II. for you to evidence  the positive and adverse impacts of the proposed change on people with protected characteristics and ways to 

mitigate or eliminate any adverse impacts.

Using this form
This form must be updated and reviewed as your evidence on a proposal for a project/service change/policy/commissioning of a service or 
decommissioning of a service evolves taking into account any consultation feedback, significant changes to the proposals and data to support 
impacts of proposed changes. The key findings of the most up to date version of the Equality Impact Analysis must be explained in the report 
to the decision maker and the Equality Impact Analysis must be attached to the decision making report.

**Please make sure you read the information below so that you understand what is required under the Equality Act 2010**

Equality Act 2010
The Equality Act 2010 applies to both our workforce and our customers. Under the Equality Act 2010, decision makers are under a personal 
duty, to have due (that is proportionate) regard to the need to protect and promote the interests of persons with protected characteristics. 

Protected characteristics
The protected characteristics under the Act are: age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity; 
race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation.

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
Section 149 requires a public authority to have due regard to the need to:

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is prohibited by/or under the Act
• Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share relevant protected characteristics and persons who do not share those 

characteristics                                          
• Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

P
age 69



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        2 
 

 

  
The purpose of Section 149 is to get decision makers to consider the impact their decisions may or will have on those with protected 
characteristics and by evidencing the impacts on people with protected characteristics decision makers should be able to demonstrate 'due 
regard'.

Decision makers duty under the Act
Having had careful regard to the Equality Impact Analysis, and also the consultation responses, decision makers are under a personal duty to 
have due regard to the need to protect and promote the interests of persons with protected characteristics (see above) and to:-    

(i) consider and analyse how the decision is likely to affect those with protected characteristics, in practical terms,
(ii) remove any unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other prohibited conduct,
(iii) consider whether practical steps should be taken to mitigate or avoid any adverse consequences that the decision is likely to  have, for 

persons with protected characteristics and, indeed, to consider whether the decision should not be taken at all, in the interests of 
persons with protected characteristics,

(iv)  consider whether steps should be taken to advance equality, foster good relations and generally promote the interests of persons with 
protected characteristics, either by varying the recommended decision or by taking some other decision.

Conducting an Impact Analysis

The Equality Impact Analysis is a process to identify the impact or likely impact a project, proposed service change, commissioning, 
decommissioning or policy will have on people with protected characteristics listed above. It should be considered at  the beginning of the 
decision making process.
 
The Lead Officer responsibility 
This is the person writing the report for the decision maker. It is the responsibility of the Lead Officer to make sure that the Equality Impact 
Analysis is robust and proportionate to the decision being taken.

Summary of findings
You must provide a clear and concise summary of the key findings of this Equality Impact Analysis in the decision making report and attach 
this Equality Impact Analysis to the report.  

P
age 70



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        3 
 

 

  
Impact – definition

An impact is an intentional or unintentional lasting consequence or significant change to people's lives brought about by an action or series of 
actions.

How much detail to include? 
The Equality Impact Analysis should be proportionate to the impact of proposed change. In deciding this asking simple questions “Who might 
be affected by this decision?” "Which protected characteristics might be affected?" and “How might they be affected?”  will help you consider 
the extent to which you already have evidence, information and data, and where there are gaps that you will need to explore. Ensure the 
source and date of any existing data is referenced.
You must consider both obvious and any less obvious impacts. Engaging with people with the protected characteristics will help you to identify 
less obvious impacts as these groups share their perspectives with you.

A given proposal may have a positive impact on one or more protected characteristics and have an adverse impact on others. You must 
capture these differences in this form to help decision makers to arrive at a view as to where the balance of advantage or disadvantage lies. If 
an adverse impact is unavoidable then it must be clearly justified and recorded as such, with an explanation as to why no steps can be taken to 
avoid the impact. Consequences must be included.

Proposals for more than one option If more than one option is being proposed you must ensure that the Equality Impact Analysis covers all 
options. Depending on the circumstances, it may be more appropriate to complete an Equality Impact Analysis for each option.

The information you provide in this form must be sufficient to allow the decision maker to fulfil their role as above. You must include 
the latest version of the Equality Impact Analysis with the report to the decision maker. Please be aware that the information in this 

form must be able to stand up to legal challenge.

P
age 71



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        4 
 

 

 

 

Title of the policy / project / service 
being considered  

Traffic Regulation Order to introduce 
permit only parking bays in various 
streets, Sincil Bank, Lincoln (Zone 5D) 

Person / people completing analysis Jeanne Gibson, Programme Leader 
Minor Works & Traffic 

Service Area 
 

Place Highways Asset Lead Officer Jeanne Gibson 

Who is the decision maker? 
 

Planning and Regulation Committee How was the Equality Impact Analysis 
undertaken? 

By review 

Date of meeting when decision will 
be made 

05/12/2022 Version control 1.0 

Is this proposed change to an 
existing policy/service/project or is 
it new? 

New LCC directly delivered, commissioned, 
re-commissioned or de-
commissioned? 

Directly delivered 

Describe the proposed change 
 
 
 

The traffic regulation order proposes to introduce bays available to permit holders only within the existing unrestricted sections 
of a number of streets in the Sincil Bank area of Lincoln. 

Background Information

P
age 72



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Evidencing the impacts
In this section you will explain the difference that proposed changes are likely to make on people with protected characteristics.
To help you do this  first consider the impacts the proposed changes may have on people without protected characteristics before then 
considering the impacts the proposed changes may have on people with protected characteristics.

You must evidence here who will benefit and how they will benefit. If there are no benefits that you can identify please state 'No 
perceived benefit' under the relevant protected characteristic. You can add sub categories under the protected characteristics to make 
clear the impacts. For example under Age you may have considered the impact on 0-5 year olds or people aged 65 and over, under 
Race you may have considered Eastern European migrants, under Sex you may have considered specific impacts on men.

Data to support impacts of proposed changes 
When considering the equality impact of a decision it is important to know who the people are that will be affected by any change.

Population data and the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
The Lincolnshire Research Observatory (LRO) holds a range of population data by the protected characteristics. This can help put a 
decision into context. Visit the LRO website and its population theme page by following this link: http://www.research-lincs.org.uk  If you 
cannot find what you are looking for, or need more information, please contact the LRO team. You will also find information about the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment on the LRO website.

Workforce profiles
You can obtain information by many of the protected characteristics for the Council's workforce and comparisons with the labour market 
on the Council's website.  As of 1st April 2015, managers can obtain workforce profile data by the protected characteristics for their 
specific areas using Agresso.

P
age 73

http://www.research-lincs.org.uk/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/residents/community-and-living/equality-and-diversity/a-strategic-approach-equality-and-diversity/valuing-our-workforce/community-and-workforce-statistics/52342.article


 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        6 
 

 

 

 

Age No positive impact 

Disability Restriction of non permit holders in the area by virtue of this scheme will reduce competition for on street parking space 
and therefore parking closer to a resident’s property is more likely. Blue Badge holders will be eligible for a free parking 
permit for the proposed zone. 

Gender reassignment No positive impact 

Marriage and civil partnership No positive impact 

Pregnancy and maternity No positive impact 

Race No positive impact 

Religion or belief No positive impact 

Positive impacts
The proposed change may have the following positive impacts on persons with protected characteristics – If no positive impact, please state 
'no positive impact'.

P
age 74



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        7 
 

Sex No positive impact 

Sexual orientation No positive impact 

 

 

If you have identified positive impacts for other groups not specifically covered by the protected characteristics in the Equality Act 
2010 you can include them here if it will help the decision maker to make an informed decision. 
 

P
age 75



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Age No perceived adverse impact 

Disability No perceived adverse impact 

Gender reassignment No perceived adverse impact 

Marriage and civil partnership No perceived adverse impact  

Pregnancy and maternity No perceived adverse impact 

Negative impacts of the proposed change and practical steps to mitigate or avoid any adverse consequences on people with 
protected characteristics are detailed below. If you have not identified any mitigating action to reduce an adverse impact please 
state 'No mitigating action identified'.

Adverse/negative impacts 
You must evidence how people with protected characteristics will be adversely impacted and any proposed mitigation to reduce or eliminate 
adverse impacts. An adverse impact causes disadvantage or exclusion. If such an impact is identified please state how, as far as possible, it 
is justified; eliminated; minimised or counter balanced by other measures. 
If there are no adverse impacts that you can identify please state 'No perceived adverse impact' under the relevant protected characteristic.

P
age 76



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        9 
 

Race No perceived adverse impact 

Religion or belief No perceived adverse impact 

Sex No perceived adverse impact 

Sexual orientation No perceived adverse impact 

 

If you have identified negative impacts for other groups not specifically covered by the protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 you 
can include them here if it will help the decision maker to make an informed decision. 
 

P
age 77



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Objective(s) of the EIA consultation/engagement activity 
 
The traffic regulation order required to introduce the scheme has been subject to a statutory process of consultation and public advertisement . 

Stakeholders

Stake holders are people or groups who may be directly affected (primary stakeholders) and indirectly affected (secondary stakeholders)

You must evidence here who you involved in gathering your evidence about benefits, adverse impacts and practical steps to mitigate or avoid 
any adverse consequences. You must be confident that any engagement was meaningful. The Community engagement team can help you to 
do this and you can contact them at engagement@lincolnshire.gov.uk

State clearly what (if any) consultation or engagement activity took place by stating who you involved when compiling this EIA under the 
protected characteristics. Include organisations you invited and organisations who attended, the date(s) they were involved and method of 
involvement i.e. Equality Impact Analysis workshop/email/telephone conversation/meeting/consultation. State clearly the objectives of the EIA 
consultation and findings from the EIA consultation under each of the protected characteristics. If you have not covered any of the protected 
characteristics please state the reasons why they were not consulted/engaged. 

P
age 78

mailto:engagement@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        11 
 

 

 

 

Age  

Disability  

Gender reassignment  

Marriage and civil partnership  

Pregnancy and maternity  

Race  

Religion or belief  

Who was involved in the EIA consultation/engagement activity? Detail any findings identified by the protected characteristic

P
age 79



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        12 
 

Sex  

Sexual orientation  

Are you confident that everyone who 
should have been involved in producing 
this version of the Equality Impact 
Analysis has been involved in a 
meaningful way? 
The purpose is to make sure you have got 
the perspective of all the protected 
characteristics. 

The public advertisement of these proposals was open to all to submit comments and representations. 

Once the changes have been 
implemented how will you undertake 
evaluation of the benefits and how 
effective the actions to reduce adverse 
impacts have been? 

Should the scheme be implemented its effects can be monitored. 
 

P
age 80



 
Equality Impact Analysis 15th January 2020 v14        13 
 

 

 

 

Are you handling personal data?  Yes 
 
If yes, please give details. 
 
Comments and representations received from the public may contain personal data. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Action Lead officer Timescale Actions required 
Include any actions identified in this 
analysis for on-going monitoring of 
impacts. 

Monitoring of the effects of the change 
to parking arrangements in the Sincil 
Bank area. 

Jeanne Gibson 12 months from operable date of Order. 

 

Version Description Created/amended 
by 

Date 
created/amended 

Approved by Date 
approved 

1.0 Lincoln, Sincil Bank, various streets – proposed 
residents permit scheme 

J Gibson 14/11/22   

 

 

 

E
x
a
m
p
l
e
s 
o
f 
a 
D
e
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n
'
V
e
r
s
i
o
n 
i
s
s
u
e
d 
a
s 
p
a
r
t 
o
f 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
'
'
I
s
s
u
e
d 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n 
w
i
t
h 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y 
g
r
o
u
p
s
'
'
I
s
s
u
e
d 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t 
f
o
r 
a 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e 
c
h
a
n
g
e
; 
I
s
s
u
e
d 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n 
w
i
t
h 
s
u
p
p
l
i
e
r
'

Further Details

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee held on 7 November 2022
	4. Minutes of the site visit held on 17 November 2022
	5.1 West Willoughby A153, Willoughby Road - proposed 40mph speed limit extension
	Appendix A - Site Location
	APPENDIX B  - Detail of Proposed Restriction

	5.2 Spalding, A151 Winsover Road - Proposed Puffin Crossing Facility
	Appendix A - General Location Plan
	Appendix B - Detailed Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	A4L



	5.3 Lincoln, Proposed Permit Parking Scheme Zone 5C - Roads between Sincil Bank Drain, High Street, Pennell Street and Portland Street
	Appendix A - Report submitted to meeting on 7 November 2022
	Appendix B - Detail of proposed restrictions
	Sheets and Views
	Zone 5C Prop


	Appendix C - List of Objections and comments
	Appendix D - Equality Impact Analysis

	5.4 Lincoln, Proposed Permit Parking Scheme Zone 5D - Roads between Sincil Bank Drain, Canwick Road, Sincil Bank Football Ground and the East West Link Road
	Appendix A - Site Location
	Appendix B - Detail of Proposed Restrictions
	Sheets and Views
	Zone 5D Proposed


	Appendix C - List of Objections and Comments
	Appendix D - Proposed Minor Modifications to the Scheme
	Sheets and Views
	A3L


	Appendix E - Equality Impact Assessment


